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To,
All Shareholders of Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd (NJMCL)
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RJSCF) &
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE)

Sub : Annual Report of Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd   for the year ended 30th June, 2020.

Dear Sir(s),

It is our immense pleasure to present before you the Annual Report of Northern Jute Manufacturing 
Company Ltd. along with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2020. Finan-
cial Statements along with notes to the Accounts of the Company comprise the statements of Financial 
Position, statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Statement of Cash Flows for the period which ended on June 30, 2020.

Best regards,
Yours sincerely,

(Shahadat Hossain Patwary)
    Company Secretary

Letter of Transmittal



Corporate Information
Basic Information
Full Name : Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd
Incorporation date : 17.09.1980
Registration No : C - 8350
Company type : Public Limited
Registered O�ce  Navana DH Tower, Level – 14, 
  6, Panthapath , Dhaka-1215.
  Phone : 55013506, Fax : 55013507
  E mail : northernjute@yahoo.com
  Web : www.northernjute.com
Factory : BSCIC  Industrial Estate, Kushtia, Bangladesh
  Tel : 071 611884-5
Authorised Capital : 100,000,000
Issued & paid up Capital : 21,420,000
No. of Shares : 2,142,000
Face value : 10
Year end : 30 June
Listing : Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd
  Company No. 16357
  Trading code : NORTHERN
Board of Directors
Mr. Uzzal  Kumar  Nandi  Chairman
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary  Nominee Director of Earthscope  Ltd.
Mr. Prince- Al- Masud,AAG  Independent Director (Court Appointed)
Mr. Taisir Mahmud,Barrister-at Law Independent Director (Court Appointed)
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA  Independent Director
Audit Committee
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary, Non Executive Director  Member
Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry, Non Executive Director Member 
Mr. Shahadat Hossain  Patwary    Member Secretary
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary, Non Executive Director  Member
Mr. Shahadat Hossain  Patwary    Member Secretary
Statutory Position
Mr. Ananga Mohan Roy  Managing Director
Mr. Ujjal   Kanti   Dhar  CFO
Mr. Shahadat Hossain  Patwary Company Secretary
Mr. Khondakar Shakhawatul Islam Head of Internal  Audit and Compliance

Auditors
Malek Siddiqui Wali
Chartered Accountants

Governance Compliance  Auditor
Pinaki  &  Company
Chartered Accountants

Bankers
Janata Bank Limited
Mercantile Bank  Ltd
Shahjalal Islami  Bank Limited
International Leasing and Financial Services Ltd
Insurers
Eastland Insurance Company Ltd
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Fortieth Annual General Meeting of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company 

Limited will be held on Sunday the 27th    December, 2020 at 10.00 A.M. in digital platform  to transact the following 

business:

A  G  E  N  D  A

01 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts for the year ended 30th June, 2020 together with  

 the Directors and Auditors Reports thereon.

02 To approve  5% Cash Dividend (only for general shareholders)  as recommended  by the Board of  

 Directors  for the year ended 30th June, 2020.

03 To elect/re-elect of Directors and to approve the appointment of Directors. 

04 To appoint statutory and compliance Auditors for the year 2020-2021 and fix their remuneration.

05 To discuss any other matter with the permission of the chair.

 

              By Order of the Board  

                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                 

         (Shahadal Hossain Patwary)

                Company secretary

The 13th December, 2020

Note:

Notice of the Fortieth  Annual General Meeting
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27.11.2020 was the Record Date. The Shareholders, whose names appeared in the share  

register/depository register on that date,  will be eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Bangladesh Security and Exchange Commission’s Order No. SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated  

08 July,2020 the AGM will be virtual meeting of the Members, which will be conducted via live webcast by  

using digital platform .

A shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in 

his/her place.  The proxy form,  stamped with a revenue stamp of Tk. 20.00, shall be submitted at the 

Corporate Office of the Company or through email at northernjute@yahoo.com 48 hours before the 

meeting. 

The Members will be able to submit their questions/comments 24 hours before commencement of the 

AGM and during the AGM. For logging into the system, the Members need to put their 16 digit Beneficial  

Owners (BO) ID number/Folio number and other credential as proof of their identity by visiting the link 

http://njmclagm40.janos.com.bd

We encourage the Members to login to the system prior to the meeting start of 10.00 A.M. (BST) on 

December 27,2020. Please allow ample time to login and establish your connectivity. The webcast will 

start at 9.00 A.M. (BST).

The Annual Report is available on the Company’s website at www.northernjute.com

a. 

b

c

d

e

f
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Some moments of 39th AGM

A section of ShreholdersA Shareholder Delivering Speech 

Shareholders entering to AGM Speech of Chairman

A view of 39th AGM



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

06 Annual Report 2019-20

Message from Chairman

Dear Shareholders, 

I would like to take this opportunity to welcome you all, on behalf of the members of the Board of Directors of the 
Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited in it’s 40th Annual General Meeting  and to present the Annual 
Report for the Year Ended 30th  June, 2020. 

Despite of various industrial and economic challenges such as high inflation rate, fluctuation of  raw jute  prices,  
infrastructural deficiencies,  various global activities, instability of  yarn/twine price and  more importantly, COVID-19, 
felt the whole  jute  sector in uncertainty. Yet in this critical situation,  the company achieved considerable level of 
growth in production and revenues due to the sound and prudent management effort. Beginning with excellent 
progress , as our revenue has been settled around 40.00 crore in first 6 months , but we couldn’t continue it last 6 
month as our factory was completely closed for almost 3 months  for pandemic COVID-19. Truly  it’s a disastrous 
situation and no doubt it’s an economic tsunami beyond our control. As I believe the coming year promises to be 
an ever-changing environment for this sector as we try to regain our  footing amidst continued volatility in costs 
and policy decisions.

Though revenue has been decreased slightly  but there was a negative growth of Net Profit  by 51.37% in the year 
2019-20 compared with previous year. This is why cost of Raw Jute  gradually increased by 20% -25% over the year. 
We are  taking various diversification plans  aiming to reach the untapped market.  Maximizing Shareholder’s 
benefits will be our prime focus like before and hope it will be continuing in coming days. Our efficient management 
and skilled labors are the backbone of the company. We are confident about our ability and team spirit. I am confident  
to able continous support from our shareholders, employees and other stakeholders, we would also be able to 
develop our company to greater heights in the coming year. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and myself, I would like to thank all our Shareholders and members of the 
Board for their unstinted support. I thankfully acknowledge the support and guidance from the regulatory bodies. 
I wish to place on record my appreciation to the employees and workers, Banks and other Govt. & Non Govt.  agencies  
for their commitment, dedication and hard working and support. 

Lastly and most importantly, I acknowledge with gratitude, the sincere support and trust of the buyers and financial 
partners who are constituted  the strength of the Company and  source of inspiration. We look towards the future 
with the confidence of running the business optimally, maximizing the returns to our stakeholders.

We hope that with your continuous support the Company shall be able to carry on its journey to progress in the 

years ahead.

Thank You,

Uzzal  Kumar Nandi
Chairman
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Message from Managing Director

Distinguished Shareholders,

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is completing its 40th year of incorporation on 17th September, 2020. 
By this time Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd has been able to establish as one of the country’s 
foremost manufactures of 100% export oriented international quality yarn/twin. This distinction comes from its 
dedication to providing its customers with finest product and services, at the highest quality and on timely delivery. 
Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd asserts its commitment to its customers by producing high quality 
yarn/twin through embracing contemporary quality principles and practices. These principles has induced an 
environment that stimulates one as a product innovator, a creator of consistent and reliable high quality comprehensive 
product. 

During this journey, despite several barriers, difficulties and complexities we were focused to our organization 
goals and the interest of shareholders as well. It’s not possible to be successful to achieve the goals without the 
special gift of creativity, without the courage and determination needed to deal with obstacles and difficulties, and 
confidence in being able to overcome.

Being one of the biggest export earner of Bangladesh, the jute Industry plays a vital role for the economy.  The 
future prospect of the jute industry in Bangladesh is very positive. Though the jute industries have been going 
through struggles during the last couple of years due to high price of raw jute   which have been increasing the 
cost of production of yarns but  the sound and prudent effort of the management helped the company achieve 
considerable level of  Production and Sales after considering the economic  disaster by COVID-19 .

By the grace of the Almighty, management integrity and professionalism, relentless effort of our team, sustainable 
implementation of our policies, continuous monitoring, we were able to keep the wheel moving towards a normative 
leverage.

In conclusion, I would like to express my deepest appreciation to the company’s shareholders for their trust and 

enduring support to the Board of Directors to operate the Company. I would also like to sincerely thank the Banks, 
Financial and Regulatory Agencies, Suppliers and Customers, various people we have interacted with in course of 
business, management staff and members of the company at all levels for their loyalty and extensive hard work, 
and express our hope for prosperity. 
We are looking forward to better days ahead!

Ananga Mohan Roy
Managing Director
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Wednesday, 30th October,2019
Quarter One

Adoption of unaudited �rst quarter �nancial 
statement ended 30th September,2019

Wednesday, 29th January,2020
Quarter Two

Adoption of unaudited second  quarter �nancial 
statement ended 31st December,2019

Wednesday, 17th June,2020
Quarter Three

Adoption of unaudited third  quarter �nancial 
statement ended 31st March,2020

Wednesday, 28th October,2020
Annual

Adoption of audited  �nancial statement for the 
year ended 30th June,2020

Thursday, 26th  November,2020
Record Date

Record date in lieu of Book Closure

Sunday, 13th  December,2020
AGM Notice

Notice of 40th Annual General Meeting

Thursday, 10th  December,2020
Annual Report

Issuance of Annual Report

Sunday, 27th  December,2020
AGM Day

40th Annual General Meeting

Tuesday,26th  January,2021
Dividend Payment
Payment of dividend to the shareholders whose
Name would appear in the register of members
Of the Company on the record date.
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

Name of the Member  Number of Audit Committee Meeting held  Attended  
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,
Chairman  4 4

 

Mr. Amitav  Adhikary,
Member  4

 
4
 

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry,
Member  4

 
3 

Mr. Shahadat Hussain 
Member Secretary  4

 
4
 

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu 
Chairman
Audit Committee
Date: 28th October, 2020

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

Name of Members Position in  Company Position in  committee 
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary Nominee Director Member 
Mr. Shahadat Hussain Company Secretary Member Secretary 

Name of Members No. of meeting held Attendance in the meeting 
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA 1 1 
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary 1 1 
Shahadat  Hossain Patwary 1 1 

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

Description 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 
Production Capacity (In M.Ton.)  9,200.00 9,200.00 9,200.00 7,200.00 

Actual Production (In M.Ton.)  6,980.86 7,757.88 7,987.62 5,921.64 

Capacity utilized  75.87% 84.32% 86.82% 82.25% 

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

Particulars 2019-20 (Tk.) 2018-19 (Tk.) 
Revenue 549,103,219 564,219,402 
Cost of Goods Sold 405,653,118 400,165,992 
Gross Profit/(Loss) 143,450,101 164,053,410 
Operating Expenses 115,168,452 106,432,139 
Operating Profit/(Loss)  28,281,648 57,621,272 
Other Income 4,299,921 2,667,245 
Net Profit/(Loss) before provision 32,581,569 60,288,517 
Net Profit / (Loss) after provision 24,263,602 49,895,771 
Earning Per Share (EPS) 11.33 23.29 

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Report of the Audit  Committee
For the year ended 30th June,2020

Under Condition No.5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, 
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring 
a good monitoring system within the business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. 
The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends over the Company covering risk management with special 
emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

The Audit committee of the company comprises of  three  Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, Headed by the Independent Director  Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA. The other members of the committee are, 
Mr.Amitav Adhikary and Mr.Swapan Kumar Mistry. The Company Secretary acted as the secretary of the Committee.

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes adopted in 
connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was empowered to examine 
the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee ensures a sound financial reporting 
system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, four Audit Committee 
meeting were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks:  

 Oversee the financial reporting process.
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principals.
 Monitor Internal Control Risk management process.
  Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before 
 submission to the Board for approval.  
 Review along with the management, the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the  
 Board for approval.  
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the management.
 Sufficient effectiveness of the internal financial controls.
 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations.
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the Company.
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2018-19 and oversees the performance of external auditors.  
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view  
 of the activities and financial status of the Company. 

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directives of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission through its Corporate 
Governance Code under notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03/06/2018 the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd. was constituted and two 
members were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to adhere the directives as follows: 

During the period under review the Independent Director of this Company Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, FCA discharged 
the duties of the Chairman of the NRC and Mr. Amitav Adhikary, Nominee Director performed as the Member of the 
NRC as per the BSEC Corporate Governance Code. 

Qualifications of the committee Members 

The NRC members possess adequate knowledge on business management and corporate governance issues, 
financially literate able to analyze, understand and interpret corporate laws, finance and financial statements and 
have business acumen. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC have been clearly mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Committee 
as approved by the Board of Directors of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Ltd. 
The Committee discharged its responsibility by holding a meeting in the FY-2019-2020 and provided required 
advices and suggestions to the Board of Directors  to execute those duly. 
In the meeting the committee it considered and assisted the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria and 
determining of the qualifications of the prospective candidates attributes, experiences etc. of the directors and top 
level executives and the remunerations of directors, top level executive of the company as well as. 

Succession planning 

The Committee reviewed the drafted succession plan designed for the executive and non-executive appointments 
to the Board, taking into account the objectives of the Company and the rotation of directors. In this process the 
Committee also considered the business  skills, commitment and knowledge as to be required for operation of this 
Company. 

Appointment/ Rotation of Non-Executive Director(s) 

During the year under review the Committee has evaluated for recommendation of 02 (two) non executive directors- 
Mr. Amitav Adhikary and Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu who were to resign by rotation and eligible for their 
re-elections/appointments as per the provisions of the Article of Association of the Company and  BSEC’s notification.  

Meeting Attendance by the Members 

The Committee held 01 (one) no. of meeting during the period ended on 30 June 2020. The Committee has placed 
its report to the Board of Directors in due course.

The attendance status of the NRC Committee Meeting is appended below: 

During the FY 2019 - 2020 the NRC accomplished the following:

 Reviewed the status of the Board composition along with their experience and track record of Board 

 members, and made recommendation to the Board in this regard; 

 Identified and nominated candidates for appointment/reappointment to the Board based on their

 knowledge experience and aptitude for attainment of the objectives of the company;

 Considered and accommodated various issues in connection with appointments, retirements and   

 changes in the Board of Directors; 

 Reviewed the issues including the company's requirement for employees as to be placed at different levels  

 and determine their selection procedures and criteria; 

 Reviewed the performance of the top-level executives of the Company and placed the recommendation  

 on their findings;

 Reviewed the company's human resources status and the development and training policies of the   

 Company aimed for the employees;

 Overseen other issues within the Code of Conduct of the NRC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressing its of the view that the nomination, re election and 

remuneration as well as internal control were procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the 

Administration, HR activities and internal governance status of the Company.

Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA     Shahadat  Hossain Patwary

Chairman,       Member Secretary,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee   Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Directors' Report 
Northern Jute  Manufacturing Company  Ltd

For the year ended 30th June,2020

Dear Shareholders: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Company  Limited,  

I welcome you to the 40th  Annual General Meeting of the Company. I have the pleasure to enclose herewith the 

Directors’ Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 

along with the Auditors’ Report thereon. These were approved by the Board of Directors on 28th October, 2020 

which has been prepared in compliance with section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 and 

other applicable laws.

Industry outlook and future prospects

The Jute industry has payed an important role in the national economy at different times despite facing several 

problems. The jute sector contributes 0.26 percent to GDP and 1.4 percent to agriculture GDP. In the 2017-18 fiscal 

year, Bangladesh earned the US$ 1.02 billion from this sector, though in the fiscal year 2018-10, the export earnings 

were US$ 816.3 million . Again , Export earnings from jute and jute products increased by 8.10 percent to the US$ 

882.35 million in the  fiscal year 2019-20. Even in the corona-epidemic, the jute sector has demonstrated positive 

growth compared to other export sectors throughout the fiscal. 

Jute-once a vibrant industry, has lost much of its shinetoday. Still the sector provides direct & indirect employment 

to about 5 million people. Many private jute mills are making profits with lower production capacity than government 

mills by diversifying their products. According to several market research, the global market of bags alone will be 

US$ 3.1 billion by 2024. Since the world’s best jute is produced in Bangladesh, it is possible to go a long way .

Global Economy Overview

The IMF predicted that the global economy would grow by 3.0 per cent this year down from 3.6 per cent the previous 

year (2018). It also predicted that global economy would achieve a growth rate of 3.4 per cent in 2020. This 

estimation has been placed before COVID -19. COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in decades. 

While the ultimate outcome is still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 

emerging market and developing economies. Growth forecasts for all regions have been severely downgraded. 

Many countries have avoided more adverse outcomes through sizable fiscal and monetary policy support. Despite 

these measures, per capita incomes in all regions are expected to go down in 2020, likely causing many millions to 

fall back into poverty.

Bangladesh  Economy Overview

Bangladesh recorded one of the fastest growth rates in the world in the past few years with a stable economic 

performance that has helped to reduce poverty and social inequalities. Though GDP growth was estimated to have 

reached 7.9% in 2019-20   but actual GDP growth rate was 5.4% due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 and expected 

to pick up to 9.5% in 2021, according to the updated IMF forecasts. The post-pandemic global economic recovery 

and the private consumption boosted by strong remittance flows from the Bangladeshi diaspora around the 

world are expected to be the key drivers of growth in 2021.

The state of the Company's affairs 

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited is a Public Limited Company. The Company was listed with Dhaka 

Stock Exchange Limited in 1994. Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited was set up with 700 spindles on 

3.12 acres of land at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia with the production capacity of 1,928 M Tons 

based on three shifts per day of 8 hours each of 300 working days in a year in the year 1982.

Over the periods, the capacity extended by almost 5 times from initial capacity. Company's core focus area is product 

development through research and innovation and its effort is to produce diverse range of yarn/twin  to compete 

in the higher value added market segment. As a part of continuous expansion program for sustainable business 

and for linking backward integration, the Company's  existing  production capacity of 9,200 MT per annum. 

Production Capacity verses actual Production for last four years in operation :

Risks and Concerns
The term risk refers to the possibility of inadequate profits or even losses due to uncertainties, e.g., changes in 
tastes, preferences of consumers, strikes, insufficient supply of raw materials etc. The Major Risk associated with the 
Jute Industries are:

 Insufficient supply of good quality  seed;

  Lack of awareness among jute farmer regarding best post harvest technology and how practice affected prices; 

 Low mills productivity in terms of machinery;

 Lack of skill labor;

  Interest rate risk;

  Exchange rate risk ;  Offset

  Lack of market linkages;

  Unfavorable market price;

  Price volatility;

  Weak bargaining power with the foreign buyers;

  Multiple intermediary levels;

  Govt. procurement policy; etc

The Management of the Company continuously developing their management, marketing and operational strategies 

to overcome the above challenges.

Operational  performance 
Capacity/ Production

In this year 2019-20, Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd isn’t  producing steady quantity as previous year resulted as 
COVID-19 has devastating impact on the production.   Now the mill is running on a 3 shift basis. Total production 
capacity of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd. is 9,200 (M.T) where as during this year the production was 
6,980.86 (M.T). It is 75.87% of total production capacity. 

 

Product wise performance

Northern Jute manufacturing company limited manufacture Jute Yarn and Twine only. Total sales during the year  
was 6,935.50 M. Ton.

Cost of production

The average cost of production per M. Ton has been increased as compared to the last year. Cost of raw jute was 
higher than previous year as in the wake of less than expected harvest of raw jute this season due to late cultivation 
and flooding. Total cost of    production during the year is Tk. 44,40,90,342 .

Sales performance

Status of sales  is being decreased as expected as resulted of 2 months lockdown period for Covid 19 . Total sales 
during the year ended 30 June, 2020 was Tk. 54,91,03,219 against  Tk. 56,42,19,402  in 2018-19.

Capital expenditures

The company made additional capital expenditure of Tk. 38.20 million to further development of its storage facilities 
for raw jute, work in progress and jute yarn. This will enable the company to procure raw jute in rainy season at a 
reasonable price and store the raw jute properly. At the same time, work in progress and finished jute material can 
also be stored in well condition.  

Foreign Exchange Earned

The Company contributed substantially to the Foreign Exchange Reserve of the Country during the reporting year 
through its export marketing operation. Total Export earning during 2019-2020 was  $ 65,63,912.00.

Highlights of Financial Performance in 2019-20

The Company’s before and after tax profit for the year 2019-20 are 32.58 million and  24.26 million compared to Tk 
60.28 million and Tk 49.90 million respectively in the previous year.

The financial result is summarized below

Significant events relating to financial operating results

Gross Profit in the year 2019-20 is decreased due to COVID 19. Due to COVID 19 the factory was completely closed 
for almost 3 months. Moreover, the availability of raw jute in the local market was not adequate to the demand 
during this year. Purchase price of raw jute was higher than the previous year. As a result, cost of finished goods 
went upper. So that, net profit has been decreased compared to the previous year. 

Retirement and re-election of Directors

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry voluntarily resigned from the Board on 19-12-2019 due personal reason. After discussion, 
the Board accepted his the voluntary resignation. 

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Amitav Adhikary retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Thereafter, the Court appointed Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the Court as the Chairman of 
the company as per Order No. 49 dated 01.09.2020 and the Court also empowered him to preside over all kinds of 
meetings including the AGM/EGM to be held in order to appoint additional and/or new set of directors.

In pursuant to Article 125 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi retired at the meeting 
by rotation and is being eligible himself for re-election in pursuant under Article 127 of the Articles of Association.

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu, Independent Director, retired as per BSEC’s notification dated 07.08.12 under condition 1.2 
(VI) and is being eligible for re-election for another term & same conditions.

On 02-03-2020, the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh appointed Mr. Margub 
Kabir, Barrister-at-Law, an Advocate of the court and learned Assistant Attorney General Mr. Prince-Al-Masud as 
independent Director vide order No.-22 dated 02-03-2020 and made them authorized signatories of all Bank 
Accounts of the Company. Subsequently, on 10.03.2020, the Honourable Court appointed Mr. Taisir Mahmud as 
Independent Director of the Company in place of Mr. Margub Kabir, Barrister-at-Law.

Subsidiary  Company
The Company has no subsidiary  companies.

Interim Dividend 

No Bonus share or stock dividend has been  declared as interim dividend by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to  Directors 

Remuneration was paid by the company to the Managing Director of the Company. No amount of money was 
expended by the Company for compensating any member of the Board or special services rendered except Board 
meeting attendance  fee  which was  Tk. 5,000/- and these were drawn by the respective Directors. 

Appointment of Auditors:

In 39th Annual general Meeting, shareholders appointed M/s. Malek Siddique Wali & Company, Chartered 
Accountants, as the external auditors for the auditing  financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
30th June,2020 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting. 

Corporate Social  Responsibility:

Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of product and 
proper corporate governance . We believe that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability 
but also address the needs of the society. From this view of point, we extend our help to local Mosque and social 
organizations in Kushtia where our Factory located. We always try our level best to contribute financial help to the 
meritorious Children of our Employees for their education and medical needs. 
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Corporate governance:

Corporate governance is key to its sustenance. Good Corporate Governance is key to successful sustenance. Our 
Corporate Governance is as follows:

Board of Directors

In line with the concept of good corporate management practice and the provisions of the Articles of Association, 
The Board of Directors, the top Management tier is responsible for overall control and supervision of the entire 
affairs of the Company primarily through strategic planning & budgetary control mechanisms. To this end, The 
Board of Directors holds periodic meetings to resolve issues of policies and strategies, correctly recording the 
minutes/  implementation of the decisions taken by the Executive Management. During the year under review the 
board held 4 (Four) meetings to transact various agendas.

The Board of Directors is reconstituted every year by the shareholders through retirement /re-election/ election of 
its members.

Separate role of the Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of Chairman and Managing Director are held separate persons. The Chairman is responsible for the 
functions of the Board & time worthy vigorous policy making  while the Managing Director serves as the Chief 
Executive of the Company looking after the activities/performances of the workforce time to time visiting the 
Factory.

Audit Committee of Board

In line with BSEC guidelines for ensuring good governance practices, a three member audit committee was formed 
where an Independent Director acts as Chairman of the committee. All the members of the Audit Committee are 
Non-executive Directors. The audit committee of the Board held 4 (four) Meetings during the year. 

Communication with the Shareholders

The Shareholders as owners of the Company are required to be provided with material information on the Company's 
operation quarterly, half-yearly and annually. They have also provided routine services by the Company Secretary 
in any company matters which is permissible. The Board is however responsible to the Shareholders as well as 
investors for publication of price sensitive information as per regulations of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission. The Company has also a website to provide permissible information/notices/price sensitive 
information/financial reports/disclosures and others for the Shareholders and interested investors.

Statement  of Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is the system by which companies are directed and controlled by the management in the 
best interest of all stakeholders, thereby ensuring greater transparency and better and timely financial reporting.

The Board of Directors are responsible for proper governance which includes setting out the Company’s strategic 
aims, providing the necessary leadership to implement such aims, supervising the management of the business 
and reporting to the shareholders on their stewardships.

Northern Jute is committed to continually reviewing all corporate governance policies and practices to ensure the 
ongoing transparency of the company’s practices and the delivery of high standards and quality information to 
stakeholders.

The maintenance of effective corporate governance remains a key priority of the Board of Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd.

Northern Jute considers that its corporate governance practices comply with all the aspects  of the BSEC notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 are depicted/disclosed in the Annexure-I, II, III, and IV 
respectively.

Management appreciation:

The Board of Directors firmly believes that NJMCL has the necessary strengths, resources and commitments to 
further propel the Company to newer heights. The performance of the Company during the period under review, 
even with so many challenges confronted, demonstrates the resolve and determination of the Board and the 
employees in the Company. In this occasion, the Board expresses on record their appreciation to the shareowners, 
suppliers, customers, bankers, media and all other well-wishers for their support and patronage to bring the company 
to this level. We value their continued support to fulfill our mission to improve the lives of people. Finally, and most 
importantly, we, on behalf of the Board of Directors thank the employees of NJMCL in factory and office for their 
untiring efforts. They have worked hard, against all odds, uncertainties and adversities and built a stronger NJMCL 
that can create a greater positive impact on the quality of life of the people.

Once again thank you all.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

(Uzzal  Kumar  Nandi)
Chairman
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Corporate governance:

Corporate governance is key to its sustenance. Good Corporate Governance is key to successful sustenance. Our 
Corporate Governance is as follows:

Board of Directors

In line with the concept of good corporate management practice and the provisions of the Articles of Association, 
The Board of Directors, the top Management tier is responsible for overall control and supervision of the entire 
affairs of the Company primarily through strategic planning & budgetary control mechanisms. To this end, The 
Board of Directors holds periodic meetings to resolve issues of policies and strategies, correctly recording the 
minutes/  implementation of the decisions taken by the Executive Management. During the year under review the 
board held 4 (Four) meetings to transact various agendas.

The Board of Directors is reconstituted every year by the shareholders through retirement /re-election/ election of 
its members.

Separate role of the Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of Chairman and Managing Director are held separate persons. The Chairman is responsible for the 
functions of the Board & time worthy vigorous policy making  while the Managing Director serves as the Chief 
Executive of the Company looking after the activities/performances of the workforce time to time visiting the 
Factory.

Audit Committee of Board

In line with BSEC guidelines for ensuring good governance practices, a three member audit committee was formed 
where an Independent Director acts as Chairman of the committee. All the members of the Audit Committee are 
Non-executive Directors. The audit committee of the Board held 4 (four) Meetings during the year. 

Communication with the Shareholders

The Shareholders as owners of the Company are required to be provided with material information on the Company's 
operation quarterly, half-yearly and annually. They have also provided routine services by the Company Secretary 
in any company matters which is permissible. The Board is however responsible to the Shareholders as well as 
investors for publication of price sensitive information as per regulations of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission. The Company has also a website to provide permissible information/notices/price sensitive 
information/financial reports/disclosures and others for the Shareholders and interested investors.

Statement  of Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is the system by which companies are directed and controlled by the management in the 
best interest of all stakeholders, thereby ensuring greater transparency and better and timely financial reporting.

The Board of Directors are responsible for proper governance which includes setting out the Company’s strategic 
aims, providing the necessary leadership to implement such aims, supervising the management of the business 
and reporting to the shareholders on their stewardships.

Northern Jute is committed to continually reviewing all corporate governance policies and practices to ensure the 
ongoing transparency of the company’s practices and the delivery of high standards and quality information to 
stakeholders.

The maintenance of effective corporate governance remains a key priority of the Board of Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd.

Northern Jute considers that its corporate governance practices comply with all the aspects  of the BSEC notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/admin/80 dated 3rd June, 2018 are depicted/disclosed in the Annexure-I, II, III, and IV 
respectively.

Management appreciation:

The Board of Directors firmly believes that NJMCL has the necessary strengths, resources and commitments to 
further propel the Company to newer heights. The performance of the Company during the period under review, 
even with so many challenges confronted, demonstrates the resolve and determination of the Board and the 
employees in the Company. In this occasion, the Board expresses on record their appreciation to the shareowners, 
suppliers, customers, bankers, media and all other well-wishers for their support and patronage to bring the company 
to this level. We value their continued support to fulfill our mission to improve the lives of people. Finally, and most 
importantly, we, on behalf of the Board of Directors thank the employees of NJMCL in factory and office for their 
untiring efforts. They have worked hard, against all odds, uncertainties and adversities and built a stronger NJMCL 
that can create a greater positive impact on the quality of life of the people.

Once again thank you all.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

(Uzzal  Kumar  Nandi)
Chairman



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

19Annual Report 2019-20

ANNEXURE-I
The Directors also report that:

1. Related Party Transactions are depicted in Note no. 34 in the Notes of Account.

2. Remuneration of Directors, including Independent Director have been shown in Note no. 33 in the Notes of Account.

3. The Financial Statement of the Company present true and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs, result of  
 its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

4. Proper books of accounts as required by the prevailing law have been maintained.

5. Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the financial statements and accounting  
 estimates were reasonable and prudent.

6. The financial statement was prepared in accordance with IAS/BAS/IFRS/BFRS.

7. The internal control system is sound in design and is effectively implemented and monitored.

8. There is no significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

ANNEXURE-II

As per condition no.1 (5) (xxii) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Security and 
Exchange Commission, the number of Board Meetings held and the Attendance by each Director during the 
Financial Year  2019-20.

       The Board granted leave of absence to the member who was unable to attend Board meeting as per laws

ANNEXURE-III
As per condition no.1 (5) (xxiii) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Security and 
Exchange Commission, the pattern of shareholding along with name wise details as  on 30 June, 2020

Name of Directors  Position in Board Meeting Held Attended 
Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi Chairman 4 4 
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary Nominee Director of

Earthscope  Ltd 
4 4 

Mr. Swapan Kumar Mistry Director 4 3 
Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA Independent Director 4 4 

Condition 
No. 

Name of the Shareholders 
 

Status Shares 
held 

% 

1(5) (xxiii) (a)  Parent/Subsidiary/Associated 
Companies and other related parties 

- - - 

1(5) (xxiii) (b)  Directors: 
Mr. Uzzal Kumar Nandi Chairman 2,13,600 9.97% 
Mr. Amitav  Adhikary Nominee Director of Earthscope  Ltd  87,600 4.09% 

Mr. Arun Kumar Kundu,FCA Independent Director - - 

  3,01,200 14.06% 
Managing Director, Chief Financial O�cer, Company Secretary, Head 
of Internal Audit and their Spouses and Minor Children:  
Mr. Ananga Mohan Roy Managing Director - - 
Mr. Ujjal  Kanti  Dhar CFO - - 
Mr. Shahadat Hossain  Patwary Company  Secretary - - 
Mr. Khondakar Shakhawatul Islam Head of  Internal  Audit - - 

1(5) (xxiii) (c) Executives (Other than  Directors, CEO, CFO, CS 
   

- - 

1(5) (xxiii) (d)  Shareholders Holding 10% or more voting interest in the company:  -  - 

and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance)
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ANNEXURE-IV
Brief Resume of the Directors

Retirement of Directors and re- appointment :

Mr. Amitav  Adhikary, Nominee  Director of Earthscope  Ltd.

Engr. Amitav Adhikary joined in the Board of  Northern Jute Manufacturing Co.  Limited on May 25, 2017 as  nominee 
director of Earthscope Ltd.

Currently he is serving as Nominee Director of Rahman Chemicals Limited. Mr. Adhikary Completed his MBA from 
Institute of Business Administration (IBA) from University of Dhaka and acquired his B.Sc. in Chemical Engineering 
degree from the Bangladesh University of Engineering and Technology (BUET).

Mr. Arun Kumer Kundu, Independent Director
Mr.Arun Kumer Kundu has  joined as an Independent Director in the Board of Northern Jute Manufacturing Co.  
Limited  on 07.02.2018.
Mr. Kundu is a proipertor of Arun & Co., Chartered Accountants. He worked as head of finance in Premier Bank 
Ltd.,  AVP in ICB Islamic Bank Ltd and The City Bank Ltd. He has participated various international courses, 
seminars, workshops and training in different countries on financial matters, especially in the area of Banking 
& Auditing. He has excellent experience in information technology. 
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Annexure-V
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

 Declaration by CEO and CFO
Date: 28.10.2020
The Board of Directors
Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Ltd

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June,2019

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80,  dated 3rd June,2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we 
do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited for the year ended 30th June,2020  
have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately 
disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, 
in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3)  The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly 
presented in its financial statements;
(4)  To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control 
and maintenance of accounting records;

(5)   Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established 
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6)  The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is 
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-

(i)  We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended  on 30.06.19 and that to the best of our knowledge 
and belief:

(a)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact  or contain statements 
that might be misleading;

(b)  These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii)   There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its 
member.

Sincerely yours,

        Ananga Mohan Roy                                                                                                        Ujjal  Kanti  Dhar
   Chief Executive Officer (CEO)                                                                              Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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Certificate of Compliance to the Shareholders



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

23Annual Report 2019-20



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

24 Annual Report 2019-20



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

33Annual Report 2019-20

Condition 
No. Title  

Compliance Status Remarks 
(Put  in the 

appropriate column) (if any) 

Complied Not 
complied   

Audit Committee, who shall be an 
independent director; 

5(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the 
Audit Committee, the remaining members 
may elect one of themselves as Chairperson 
for that particular meeting, in that case there 
shall be no problem of constituting a quorum 
as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and 
the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the 
minutes. 

    

5(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall 
remain present in the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM): 

    

5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee 
5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least 

its four meetings in a financial year:     

5(4)(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit 
Committee shall be constituted in presence of 
either two members or two-third of the 
members of the Audit Committee, which ever 
is higher, where presence of an independent 
director is a must. 

    

 5(5)  Role of Audit Committee 
 The audit committee shall:- 
5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process;     
5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and 

principles.     

5(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance 
process to ensure that it is adequately 
resourced, including approval of the Internal 
Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the 
Internal Audit and Compliance Report; 

    

5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external 
auditors.     

5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory 
auditors for review of the annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board 
for approval or adoption; 

    

5(5)(f) Review along with the management, the 
annual financial statements before submission 
to the Board for approval; 

    

5(5)(g) Review along with the management, the 
quarterly and half yearly Financial Statements     
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Condition 
No. Title  

Compliance Status Remarks 
(Put  in the 

appropriate column) (if any) 

Complied Not 
complied   

before submission to the Board for approval. 

5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit 
function.     

5(5)(i) Review the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis before disclosing in the Annual 
Report; 

    

5(5)(j) review statement of all related party 
transactions submitted by the management;     

5(5)(k) Review Management Letters/ Letter of 
Internal Control weakness issued by statutory 
auditors. 

    

5(5)(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees based 
on scope and magnitude, level of expertise 
deployed and time required for effective audit 
and evaluate the performance of external 
auditors;  

    

5(5)(m) Oversee  whether the proceeds raised 
through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or 
Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights 
Share Offer have been utilized as per the 
purposes stated in relevant offer document or 
prospectus approved by the Commission: 

  N/A 

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee 
5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors 
5(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its 

activities to the Board of Directors.     

5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the 
following findings, if any:- 

5(6)(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of Interests.    
5(6)(a)(ii)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity 

or material defect identified in the internal 
audit and compliance process or in the 
financial statements; 

   

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory  
compliances including securities related laws, 
rules and regulations;  

   

5(6)(a)(ii) (d) Any other matter which the Audit Committee 
deems necessary shall be disclosed to the 
Board immediately; 

   

5(6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit 
Committee has reported to the Board about 
anything which has material impact on the 
financial condition and results of operation 
and has discussed with the Board and the 
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(Put  in the 

appropriate column) (if any) 

Complied Not 
complied   

management that any rectification is 
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds 
that such rectification has been unreasonably 
ignored, the Audit Committee shall report 
such finding to the Commission, upon 
reporting of such matters to the Board for 
three times or completion of a period of 6 
(six) months from the date of first reporting 
to the Board, which ever is earlier. 

5.(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and 
General Investors:- Report on activities 
carried out by the Audit Committee, 
including any report  made to the Board 
under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during 
the year, shall be signed by the Chairperson 
of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the 
annual report of the issuer company. 

  -  

6. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). 
6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors 
6(1)(a) The company shall have a Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-
committee of the Board; 

    

6(1)(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in 
formulation of the nomination criteria or 
policy for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, experiences and independence of 
directors and top level executive as well as a 
policy for formal process of considering 
remuneration of directors, top level executive; 

    

6(1)(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC 
shall be clearly set for thin writing covering 
the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b). 

    

6(2) Constitution of the NRC    
6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least 

three members including an independent 
director; 

  
  

6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-
executive directors;      

6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be 
nominated and appointed by the Board;      

6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and 
appoint any member of the Committee;     

6(2)(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, 
or removal of any member of the Committee     
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or in any other cases of vacancies, the board 
shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred 
eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the 
Committee; 

6(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may 
appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff to the Committee as 
advisor  who shall be non-voting member, if 
the Chairperson feels that advice or 
suggestion from such external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff shall be required or 
valuable for the Committee; 

  

  

6(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the 
secretary of the Committee;     

6(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not 
constitute without attendance of at least an 
independent director; 

  
  

6(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either 
directly or indirectly, any remuneration for 
any advisory or consultancy role or other 
wise, other than Director’s fees or 
honorarium from the company. 

  

  

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC    6(3)(a) The  Board shall select1(one) member of the 
NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee, 
who shall be an independent director; 

  
  

6(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the 
NRC, the remaining members may elect one 
of themselves as Chairperson for that 
particular meeting, the reason of absence of 
the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes 

  

  

6(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the 
annual general meeting (AGM) to answer the 
queries of the shareholders: 

  
  

6(4) Meeting of the NRC    
6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting 

in a financial year;     

6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene 
any emergency meeting upon request by any 
member of the NRC; 

  
  

6(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall 
be constituted in presence of either two 
members or two third of the members of the 
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Committee, whichever is higher, where 
presence of an independent director is must 
as required under condition No. 6(2)(h); 

6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC 
shall duly be recorded in the minutes and 
such minutes shall be confirmed in the next 
meeting of the NRC. 

   

 

6(5)  Role of the NRC    
6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or 

accountable to the Board and to the 
shareholders;  

  
  

6(5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the 
following matters and make report with 
recommendation to the Board: 

  
  

6(5)(b)(i) Formulating the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend a 
policy to the Board, relating to the 
remuneration of the directors, top level 
executive, considering the following: 

  

  

6(5)(b)(i)(a) The level and composition of remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate suitable directors to run the 
company successfully; 

  

  

6(5)(b)(i)(b) The relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear  and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks; and 

  
  

6(5) (b)(i)(c) Remuneration to directors, top level 
executive involves a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the company and its goals; 

  

  

6(5)(b)(ii) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking 
into consideration age, gender, experience, 
ethnicity, educational background and 
nationality; 

  

  

6(5)(b)(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be appointed 
in top level executive position in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, and recommend 
their appointment and removal to the Board; 

  

  

6(5)(b)(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors and 
the Board; 
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6(5)(b)(v) Identifying the company’s needs for 
employees at different levels and determine 
their selection, transfer or replacement and 
promotion criteria; and 

  

  

6(5)(b)(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing 
annually the company’s human resources and 
training policies; 

  
  

6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination 
and remuneration policy and the evaluation 
criteria and activities of NRC during the year 
at a glance in its annual report. 

    

7 External or Statutory Auditors.    7(1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the 
following services of the company, namely:- 

7(1)(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness 
opinions;      

7(1)(ii) Financial information systems design and 
implementation;      

7(1)(iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the 
accounting records or financial statements;      

7(1)(iv) Broker-dealer services;      7(1)(v) Actuarial services;      7(1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit 
services;     

7(1)(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee 
determines;     

7(1)(viii) Audit or certification services on compliance 
of corporate governance as required under 
condition No. 9(1); and 

    

7(1)(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of 
interest.     

7(2) No partner or employees of the external audit 
firms shall possess any share of the company 
they audit at least during the tenure of their 
audit assignment of that company; his or her 
family members also shall not hold any shares 
in the said company: 

    

7(3) Representative of external or statutory 
auditors shall remain present in the 
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General 
Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting) 
to answer the queries of the shareholders. 

    

8 Maintaining a website by the Company.    
8(1) The company shall have an official website     



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

39Annual Report 2019-20

Condition 
No. Title  

Compliance Status Remarks 
(Put  in the 

appropriate column) (if any) 

Complied Not 
complied   

linked with the website of the stock exchange.  
8(2) The Company shall keep the website 

functional from the date of listing.     

8(3) The company shall make available the 
detailed disclosures on its website as required 
under the listing regulations of the concerned 
stock exchange(s). 

    

9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate 
Governance.    

9(1) The company shall obtain a certificate from a 
practicing Professional Accountant or 
Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and 
Management Accountant or Chartered 
Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or 
audit firm on yearly basis regarding 
compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance Code of the Commission and 
shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the 
Annual Report. 

    

9(2) The professional who will provide the 
certificate on compliance of this Corporate 
Governance Code shall be appointed by the 
shareholders in the annual general meeting. 

    

9(3) The directors of the company shall state, in 
accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in 
the directors’ report whether the company 
has complied with these conditions or not 
 

    



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

40 Annual Report 2019-20

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited which comprise the 
financial position as at June 30, 2020, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except the effect described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, of the financial position of the Company as at June 30, 2020, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), the company act 1994, the Security and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable law and regulations. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.   As per paragraph 234(b) of Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 Company should pay Workers Profit Participation Fund 
within nine month after the year end. But management didn’t pay WPPF to the members of the fund, which is 
violation of the Bangladesh Labour Act 2006.

2.  According to our calculation deferred tax liability will be 6,523,925 so the deferred tax liability and deferred tax 
expenses understated by 1,209,733. But we could not able to confirm opening balance of deferred tax liability due 
to shortage of documents.

As per Paragraph 64 of IAS 12, Income Taxes entity should transfer excess depreciation net of deferred tax on revalued 
amount, from revaluation surplus to equity after considering deferred tax. But entity transferred excess depreciation 
from revaluation surplus to equity without considering deferred tax and no deferred tax was maintained in respect 
of revaluation surplus. So deferred tax liability understated and equity overstated by same amount.

3.  Company constructed four dormitories with total area of sixteen thousand square feet and cost of total 
construction is taka 88,780,594 (taka 5,549 per square feet). According to the nature & area of the structure this 
amount of construction is not justifiable. Furthermore we observed   that no depreciation was charged on this 
addition, so depreciation expenses are undercharged by 369,919 and profit overstated by same amount.

4.  Capital Work - in – Progress balance at the yearend stood of taka 38,291,367 which is 4% of total asset and material 
to the financial statements. We could not physically verify the nature and type of Capital Work - in – Progress.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our Qualified Opinion.



Emphasis of Matter Paragraph
1. During our audit we have not been provided the third party confirmation in relation to the loan balances, bank 
balances. So we were not able to confirm the loan and bank balance.  
2. In reference to the BSEC directive no. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/120/Admin/35, dated December 07, 2011, the 
directors of the listed security must hold jointly 30% of paid up capital. But the directors of the company just hold 
15.09% paid-up capital.

Key Audit Matters

Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

41Annual Report 2019-20

Risk

Revenue recognition

Our response

At the year ended, the company’s reported 
total revenue of Tk. 549,103,219

Revenue is measured net of trade discount and 
VAT. Time of revenue recognition is matter. The 
revenue may overstated for the early recognition 
of revenue to achieve the desire result.

The balance of inventory of the Company at 
the year-end was Tk. 197,718,652 held in the 
company’s warehouse. 

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. As a result, the Directors 
apply judgment in determining the appropriate 
values for slow-moving or obsolete items.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
key controls focusing on the following:

       Policy of revenue recognition:

       Issuance of VAT challan;

        Segregation  of duties in invoice creation and modification; 
and

       Timing of revenue recognition. 

       Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue  
recognition comprises the following:

       Obtaining supporting documentation for sales transactions 
recorded either side of year end as well as credit notes 
issued after the year end date to determine whether 
revenue was recognized in the correct period;

       VAT is correctly dealt with;

    Critically assessing manual journals posted to revenue 
to identify unusual or irregular items; and

       Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation 
of disclosures against relevant accounting Standards.

We challenged the appropriateness of management’s 
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the inventory 
and related provisions by:

      evaluating the design and implementation of key inventory 
controls operating across the Company in respect of inventory 
management;

      to attend the physical inventory counts and reconciling the 
count results to the inventory listings to test the completeness 
of data;

      to review the inventory costing procedures and methodology.

      comparing the net realizable value, obtained through a 
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year-end, to the 
cost price of a sample of inventories and comparison to the 
associated provision to assess whether inventory provisions 
are complete;

Please see the note 20 in this financial statements.

Valuation of inventory
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Other Information 
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. We have not been provided the Director’s report and other information 
contained within the annual report except the financial statements to the date of our auditor’s report. We expect 
to obtain the remaining reports of the Annual report after the date of our auditor’s report. Management is responsible 
for the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified 
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and 
Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with IFRSs as explained, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
The Companies Act, 1994 require the Management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management 
functions of the Company.

In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Risk Our response

The balance of reported deferred tax liability of 
the company was Tk. 5,314,191 as on June 30, 
2020.

The risk for the financial statements is that 
these provisions are not properly measured for 
all types of temporary difference as per IAs 12: 
Income Tax.

       We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design 
and tested the operational effectiveness of the Company’s 
key controls over the recognition and measurement of 
deferred tax.

       We have assessed the appropriateness of the carrying 
amounts of net asset value as per tax base and accounting 
base.

       We have also assessed the rate of deferred for each 
temporary difference.

       Also, we examined the accounting treatment of 
deferred tax.

Please see the note 15 in this financial statements.

Please see the note 6 in this financial statements.

Measurement and recognition of deferred tax
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit  procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the  override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report the 
following:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appeared from our examination of these books;

c) the statements of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in 
agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and
d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Dated, Dhaka  
November 22 , 2020  

Md. Waliullah
Chartered Accountants
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NORTHERN JUTE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE ACCOUNT

2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd

51Annual Report 2019-20

2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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2.6       Reporting Currency and Level of Precision:

The Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional 
currency. All financial information has been presented rounded off to the nearest Taka except where indicated 
otherwise.

2.7 Comparative Information:

Comparative Information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2019 for all numerical information in the Financial 
Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for understanding of the current 
period Financial Statements.

The figure of the year 2019 has been re-arranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparatively with 
the current period.

3.        Significant Accounting Policies:

3.1       Recognition of Fixed Assets & Depreciation:

Fixed Assets are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 “Property Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and revaluation. After recognition as an asset, 
an item of Property, Plant and Equipment carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Depreciation on all other Property, Plant, and Equipments are computed using the reducing 
balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful economic lives. 
The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are eliminated 
from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such is reflected in operations for the year. 
Depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and no depreciation has been provided on its disposal.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

 Building   5%
 Godown   5%
 Plant & Machinery  10%
 Generator   15%
 Office Equipment  15%
 Vehicles   20%
 Forklift    20%
 Electric Installation  15%
 Furniture & Fixture  15%
 Sundry Assets   15%

Maintenance activities:

The Company incurs maintenance costs for all major items of Fixed Assets. Repair and Maintenance costs are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of Fixed Assets the cost of replacing part of such an 
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow 
to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the Assets have been 
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period 
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the Fixed Assets, the expenditure 
is capitalized as an additional cost of the Assets. All other costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

Disposal of Fixed Assets:

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such 
disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net 
book value of the assets and net sales proceeds.

3.2 Inventories:

Inventories comprise Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Work in Process, Finished Goods and Stock of Stationery 
and Spares and Accessories. They are stared at the lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS -2 
“Inventories”. The cost of inventories is assigned by using Weighted Average Cost formula. The cost of inventories 
comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to 
be incurred to make the sale. The physical stocks counting for verify the closing socks of inventories were carried 
out by internal audit team of the company.

3.3 Financial Instruments:

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets:

Financial Assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables. The 
company initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving 
the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial 
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. 

Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are 
made where there is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and 
general economic conditions. When an account receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off, firstly 
against any provision available and then to the statement of comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously provided for are credited to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Advances and Deposits:

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, 
adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

According to IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement” and IAS 1 “presentation of financial Statement” Cash and Cash equivalents 
are carried in the financial position at cost and included cash in hand and with banks on current and deposit 
accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of 
change in value of the same. 

3.4     Impairment:

Financial Assets:

Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated 
future cash flows of that asset, that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired 
can include default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy etc.

Non-financial Assets:

As asset is impaired when an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses at 
each reporting date whether there is any indication that as asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
company estimated the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its 
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Financial Liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga-
tions are discharged or cancelled or expire.

Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities. 

3.6  Creditors and Accruals:

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed by the supplier.

3.7 Provision:

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial 
position. Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

3.8 Revenue Recognition:

The company recognized revenue when risk of ownership has been transferred to the buyer, which satisfied all the 
condition for the revenue recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

Accounting for Government Grants (cash subsidy) and disclosure of Government Assistance:
A Government Grant (cash subsidy) that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related cost, is recognized 
in profit and loss on accrual basis. 
3.9  Income Tax Expense:

Current Tax:
Provision for current year income tax has been made higher one among @ 10% as prescribe in the SRO No. 207-
Legal/Income Tax/2016 dated 29.06.16 on the accounting profit by the company,  Turn over Tax or AIT deducted at 
sources. 

Deferred Tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as per International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12. 
Accordingly deferred tax liability/asset is accounted for all temporary timing differences arising between the tax 
base of the assets and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose. Deferred tax is computed 
at the prevailing tax rate as per Finance Act 2015.

3.10 Borrowing Costs:

This has been dealt with the requirements of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs. Borrowing costs relating to projects in commercial 
operation are recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred. In respect of projects that have not 
yet commenced commercial production, borrowing costs are debited to capital work in progress. 

3.11  Employee Benefits:
The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salary, bonuses etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured on an undiscounted 
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds:

This represents 5% of net profit before tax to be contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh 
Labor Law, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said law. But this is a problem for us to distribute this 
fund to workers who are truly entitled as by surprisingly, there are huge turnover, especially in workers level, in this 
sector  so that we could not find those workers at the time of distributing fund. As a result we didn’t pay to the 
members’.

3.12   Proposed Dividend:

The amount of proposed dividend is not accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the account along with 
dividend per share in accordance with the requirements of the Para 125 of International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend has not been considered as “Liability” in 
accordance with the requirements of the Para 12 & 13 of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 10: Events after 
the Reporting Period, because no obligation exited at the time of approval of the accounts and recommendation 
of dividend by the Board of Directors.

The Board Proposed dividend @ 5% cash dividend for the year ended 30th  June, 2020 only for the general shareholders.

3.13  Earning Per Share (EPS):

This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS-33: “Earnings Per Share” by dividing the basic 
earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings:

This represents earning for the year attributable to ordinary share holders. As there was no preference dividend 
minority interest on extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable 
to the ordinary share holders.

Basic Earnings per Share:

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the number of ordinary shares issued by the company.

Diluted Earnings Per Share:

No diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) is required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review.

3.14  Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Cash Flow Statement”. The cash generated 
from operating activities have been reported using the direct method as prescribed by the Security and Exchange 
Rule 1987 and as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from 
operating activities are disclosed.

3.15   Foreign Currency Translation:

Translations in foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction in accordance with provision of IAS 21 “the effect of changes in foreign currency rate”

3.16  Use of Estimates and:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs/IASs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of Assets, 
Liabilities, Income and Expenses, and disclosure requirements for contingent Assets and Liabilities during and at 
the date of the Financial Statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting estimates and Errors. 

3.17   IAS 10 “ Event After Balance Sheet Date”:

There is no information/transaction of such importance, non-disclosure of which would affect the availability to 
the user of the Financial Statements to make a proper evaluation and decision . 

3.18   Transaction with Related Parties:

The company has carried on transaction with related parties in the normal course of Business.

3.19  Financial risk management:

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market condition and the company’s activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from 
its use of financial instruments.

         Credit risk
         Liquidity risk
         Market risk
         Operational risk

Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit 
policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Risk exposures from other Financial 
Assets, i.e. Cash at Bank and other external receivables are nominal.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The 
company’s approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that 
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations 
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation 
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short terms 
financing.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

1.          Status of the company

1.1       Legal form of the company:

Northern Jute Mfg. Co. Ltd. was incorporated under the Company Act. 1913 (now Companies Act, 1994) as a Public 
Company Limited by share on September 17, 1980 and the shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited of Bangladesh.

1.2       Address of  Registered Office and Principal place of Business:
The Company, in its 123rd meeting of the Board of the Directors held on 23rd June, 2014 decided to shift the registered 
office of the Company from Jatiya Scount Bhaban (9th Floor), 70/1 Purana Paltan Line, Kakrail, Dhaka. The present 
address of the registered office and principal place of the business is Navana DH Tower, 6, Panthpoth (14th Floor), 
Dhaka and the manufacturing place is located at BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kumargara, Kushtia.

1.3        Nature of Business  Activities:

The Company operates in a Single industry segment. It owns and operates a jute spinning mill and producing and 
selling Jute Yarn and Twine.

2.          Bases of Financial Statement-its preparation and presentation:

2.1       Basis of Accounting:

The accounts have been prepared on a going concept convention under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) and on accrual basis.

2.2       Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, 
the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Listing Regulations of  Dhaka Stock Exchange and other relevant local 
laws and regulations as applicable and in accordance with the applicable Bangladesh Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (BFRSs) including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Account-
ants of Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRSs).

2.3       Component of Financial Statements:

According to  Accounting Standard (IAS-1) “Presentation of Financial Statements” the complete set of Financial  
Statements includes the following component:
  A Statement of Financial position as at June 30, 2020.
   A Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 A Statement of Changes in Equity.
 Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.4       Reporting Period:

Financial Statements of the company cover one calendar year from 1st July, 2019 to 30th June, 2020.

2.5       Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements:

The Management is responsible for preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under section 183 of the 
Company Act. 1994 and as per the provision of “The Framework for The Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements” issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC).

(a)   Currency risk:

The company is exposed to currency risk on revenues such as revenue from foreign customers. Majority of the 
company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to export.

(b)  Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There was no foreign currency 
loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations 
in interest rates. The company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date.   

Operational risk

A form of risk that summarizes the risks a company or firm undertakes when it attempts to operate within a given 
field or industry. Operational risk is the risk that is not inherent in financial, systematic or market-wide risk. It is the 
risk remaining after determining financing and systematic risk, and includes risks resulting from breakdowns in 
internal procedures, people and systems. The Operational Risk Management (ORM) of the company involves a 
continual cyclic process which includes risk assessment, risk decision making, and implementation of risk controls, 
which results in acceptance, mitigation, or avoidance of risk.
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NJMCL Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited 
DH Tower, Level-14, 6 Panthapath, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh. 

Proxy Form 

I/We………………………………………………. Of (address) …………………………………………………………………………………… being 
a member of Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited hereby appoint Mr/Mrs/Miss ……….. as my proxy 
to a end and vote for me and my behalf at the 40th Annual General Me ng (AGM) of the Company to be 
held on Sunday the 27h December, 2020 at 10.00 A.M digital pla  As witness my hand this 
……………………………. day of ……………………….2020 

                                                                                                                          

(Signature of the Proxy)                                          Revenue                    (Signature of the Shareholder) 
                                                                                     Stamp  
                                                                                     Tk: 20.00 
Date: …………………………                                                                                Register Folio/BO No…………………. 

No………………………………                                                                               Date: ……………………………………………… 

                                                                                                                         Signature ver ed 

                                                                                                                            

                                                                  Authorized Signature 

Notes: 
a) A member en to a end and vote at the above mee  may appoint a proxy to a end on his/her behalf but such 
proxy must be a member of the company 
b) The instrument app  a proxy shall be deposited at the registered o ce of the Company not less than 48 (Forty 
Eight) hours before the of holding the mee . 
 
 
 

NJMCL Northern Jute Manufacturing Company Limited 
DH Tower, Level-14, 6 Panthapath, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh. 

SHAREHOLDER’S ATTENDENCE SLIP 
I/We hereby record my a endance at the 40th Annual General Mee  (AGM) of the Company to be held on Sunday the 
27th December, 2020 at 10.00 A.M . in digital pla orm. 

Name of Shareholders: …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

Shareholder’s Folio/BO No: ………………………………………………..Signature: ………………………………………………….. 

Name of Proxy (in Block): ……………………………………………………..Folio /BO No: …………………………………………… 

Signature of Proxy 

N.B: Shareholder a ending the mee  in person or by proxy is requested to complete the a endance slip and hand it 
over at the entrance of the mee g. 



Northern Jute Manufacturing Co. Ltd.
Registered Office

DH Tower, Level-14, 6 Panthapath, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Tel: +88 02 55013506, Fax: +88 02 55013507

E-mail:northernjute@yahoo.com,Web: www.northernjute.com
Factory

BSCIC Industrial Estate, Kushtia, Bangladesh
Tel: +88 071-61884-85


